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STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  

WAKE COUNTY 

 

BEFORE THE STATE BOARD OF ELECTIONS 

 

IN THE MATTER OF: PROTEST OF 

ELECTION TO CITY OF TRINITY CITY 

COUNCIL AT-LARGE BROUGHT BY 

THOMAS H. JOHNSON  

 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

ORDER 

 

THIS  MATTER  CAME BEFORE  THE  STATE BOARD  OF ELECTIONS  upon  the request of the 

Randolph County Board of Elections (“Randolph Board”) from their hearing of a protest brought by 

Thomas H. Johnson (“Petitioner”) regarding the election for the City of Trinity City Council At-Large 

(“Protest”).  The State Board of Election heard this mater on January 15, 2016 in Raleigh, during which 

Randolph County Board of Elections Chairman John William McAnulty and Randolph County Director of 

Elections Melissa Johnson appeared.  

 

This Board conducted a review of all issues of law and based its decision on the record as a whole to 

determine whether there was substantial evidence to believe a violation of election law or other irregularity 

or misconduct occurred that might affect the outcome of the election or was sufficiently serious to cast 

doubt on the apparent results of the election. After reviewing the record and applicable precedent, and after 

hearing argument from the parties, the State Board finds, concludes and orders as follows: 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

  

1. Petitioner filed his Protest before the Randolph Board on November 13, 2015 pursuant to 

G.S. 163-182.9; and 

2. The Randolph Board heard the Protest on November 30, 2015 and issued its order on December 

4, 2015; and 

3. Karen Bridges voted a non-retrievable ballot in the November 3, 2015 municipal election for 

the City of Trinity City Council At-Large race; and  

4. Bridges was ineligible to participate in the election; and  

5. One vote separated the top candidates for the City of Trinity City Council At-Large race; and  

6. The State Board of Elections noticed all parties of its January 15, 2016 hearing.  

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

 

1. This State Board of Elections has jurisdiction to decide this matter and order an appropriate 

remedy pursuant to G.S. §§ 163-22, 163-182.12; and 

2. The order of the Randolph Board, its findings of fact, and conclusions of law contained no 

reversible error; and 

3. There is substantial evidence to believe ineligible voters sufficient in number to change the 

outcome of the election were allowed to vote in the election, and it is not possible from 

examination of the official ballots to determine how Bridges voted and to correct the totals..  
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It is, therefore, ORDERED: 

 

The Randolph Board is ordered to hold a new election on March 15, 2016.  

 

This the twentieth day of January, 2016. 

 

_____________________________ 

A. Grant Whitney, Jr., Chair 

State Board of Elections 
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1

2

3

4  RANDOLPH COUNTY BOARD OF ELECTION
     ELECTION PROTEST HEARING
5

6
         - - -
7

8
         Monday, November 30, 2015
9         2 p.m.
         Randolph County Courthouse
10         Courtroom 3-B
         176 E. Salisbury Street
11         Asheboro, NC  27203

12

13
  The following Randolph County Board of
14   Election members were present:

15    Bill McAnulty, Chairperson
      Darren Allen, Member
16    Margaret Megerian, Member

17

18

19

20

21

22

23
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1      MR. MCANULTY:  Good afternoon.

2  Since the time has arised for 2 o'clock, I

3  will call this panel hearing on the duly

4  filed election protest by Mr. Thomas

5  Johnson concerning an alleged violation of

6  voting law during the November 3rd, 2015,

7  Trinity Council at-large contest to order.

8      Before we start, let me introduce

9  myself and the chair.  I am Bill McAnulty,

10  the Chair of the Randolph County Board of

11  Elections, and I have with me today

12  Ms. Margaret Megerian and Mr. Darren

13  Allen, who are the other two board

14  members.  In addition, we have Ms. Melissa

15  Johnson, who is the Randolph County

16  Director of Elections, and Ms. Amiee

17  Scotton, who is the Randolph County Staff

18  Attorney.  I think I've got those titles

19  correct.

20      Now, just as a -- a little matter

21  of where we're at and how we're going to

22  handle this thing, this hearing will be

23  conducted under North Carolina General
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1  Statute 163-82.10, General Statute 180 --

2  163-182.12, and 8 NCAC 02.0110.

3      Now, I've said a whole lot.  These

4  are lengthy statutes and I'll not

5  take the time to read them in their

6  entirety, but I do have -- I'm going to

7  point out some of the major parts that

8  will govern the procedure.

9      This is a quasi-judicial hearing,

10  which means, basically, as I understand

11  it, that it's conducted, basically, under

12  the rules of a normal court; however, the

13  strict rules of evidence do not apply.

14  The hearing must be recorded, and we've

15  got a court reporter here to do just that.

16  The record will not be transcribed unless

17  the State Board of Election requires it.

18  The record, however, will be maintained by

19  the county board until directed otherwise

20  by the state board.

21      All witnesses will be required to

22  testify under oath.  Any person

23  present, whether they were subpoenaed or
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1  not, will be given an opportunity to

2  testify, provided you have facts about the

3  matter.  We're not going to listen to

4  somebody's opinion, but if you've got

5  facts, we'll listen to it.

6      The board members all have the

7  authority to question witnesses after they

8  testify and the coun -- this board must

9  render an oral decision no later than 5

10  o'clock tomorrow, which will be the day

11  after the hearing, and then, finally, the

12  county board must submit a written order

13  of their decision to the State Board of

14  Election within five days after their oral

15  decision is announced.

16      This order must contain certain

17  findings and conclusions of law.

18      Now, let me see.  Does anyone have

19  any questions on what I've said to this

20  point?

21        (NO RESPONSE.)

22      MR. MCNAULTY:  If not, I'm going

23  to ask that everybody that has been

JOHNSON 35



Page 5
1  subpoenaed -- and I'll read the names --

2  and I want you all to step forward and

3  we're going to issue the oath to the

4  entire group so that, as you come

5  individually, we won't have to do it, and

6  the fact that we put you under oath

7  doesn't necessarily mean that you're going

8  to be called to testify.  I want that

9  understood, too.

10      Would Mr. Tommy Johnson please

11  step forward, Ms. Linda Gantt, Karen

12  Bridges, Richard McNabb, Judith Campbell,

13  John Matthews, Melissa Nance, Shirley

14  Probert.

15      Now, if I didn't pronounce that

16  right, please correct me.  Gary Reeder,

17  and Ms. Melissa Johnson.  Since she's

18  going to be giving testimony, I'll ask her

19  to --

20      MR. ALLEN:  Could we -- Could we

21  add anybody else that may be interested in

22  offering testimony?

23      MR. MCANULTY:  Yes.  If -- If
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1  anybody that -- else that may be

2  interested in testifying, if you'd come

3  forward and give us your name, we would

4  give -- give you the oath and then you

5  wouldn't have to do it when you step

6  forward.

7      And your name?

8      MR. BOYLES:  Carlton Boyles.

9      MS. JOHNSON:  Carlton Boyles?

10      MR. MCANULTY:  Excuse me?

11      MR. BOYLES:  Carlton Boyles.

12      MR. MCANULTY:  Carlton Boyles.

13  Now, I wasn't looking when I read those

14  names.  Is -- Everybody I read the names

15  of, are they here?

16      MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

17      MR. MCANULTY:  All right.

18  (ALL OF THE ABOVE-LISTED INDIVIDUALS WERE

19   DULY AFFIRMED BY THE CHAIRPERSON.)

20      MR. MCANULTY:  Let it be recorded

21  that the group, in mass, has been put

22  under oath.  Thank you and you may be

23  seated.
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1  (ALL PARTIES RETURN TO THEIR SEATS,

2        AS DIRECTED.)

3      MR. MCANULTY:  At this time, I'll

4  ask Ms. Johnson to please give us a

5  summary of this protest and what has

6  happened with it to this point.

7      MS. JOHNSON:  0kay.  The election

8  was held November 3rd, 2015.  The Board of

9  Elections held canvas on November 10th of

10  2015 to certify the election.  An election

11  protest was filed on November 13th, 2015.

12  I'll go over those in just -- those pieces

13  in just a few minutes, those documents.  A

14  recount of this election was held November

15  17th, 2015, called for by Mr. Tommy

16  Johnson.  At that point, the recount was

17  certified as a tie vote, but it is pending

18  the resolution of this election protest.

19  Because of the election protest being

20  filed, a pre-consideration meeting was

21  held November 20th, 2015.

22      At that time, the Board of

23  Elections found that there was probable
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1  cause for the protest and a full hearing

2  was set for today.  A hearing notice -- A

3  -- A hearing notice was released on

4  November 20th and witnesses were

5  subpoenaed, per order of the board Chair,

6  on November 20th, and those went to Tommy

7  Johnson, the protester; Linda Gantt; Karen

8  Bridges, Richard McNabb, as a witness; and

9  then our poll workers at the Trinity

10  precinct: Judy Campbell, Chief Judge; John

11  Matthews, Judge; Melissa Nance, Judge;

12  Shirley Probert, Assistant; and Gary

13  Reeder, Assistant.

14      Would you like me to go over the

15  documents of the protest, or do you want

16  to wait on that?

17      MR. MCANULTY:  I think, for the

18  sake of -- does -- does everybody that was

19  subpoena -- subpoenaed have a copy of all

20  the documentation of the protest?

21      MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

22      MS. JOHNSON:  They should.  Yeah.

23  They -- They were all given one.
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1      MR. ALLEN:  Could we mark the

2  protest that's filed as Exhibit 1 and have

3  that entered?

4      MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

5     (EXHIBIT NO. 1 WAS MARKED.)

6      MR. ALLEN:  And I have a few

7  questions just to ask.  Was the protest

8  filed in compliance with the Statute,

9  163-182.9?

10      MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

11      MR. ALLEN:  Was it in writing?

12      MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

13      MR. ALLEN:  Signed by the

14  protester?

15      MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

16      MR. ALLEN:  Did it state the basis

17  of the protest?

18      MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

19      MR. ALLEN:  Could you briefly

20  summarize that?

21      MS. JOHNSON:  The basis of the

22  protest is on Statute 163-57.5.

23      MR. ALLEN:  Would -- Would it be

JOHNSON 40



Page 10
1  that a -- a vote was cast by a voter,

2  allegedly, that did not maintain residence

3  in the -- within the jurisdictional limits

4  of the town, Trinity; is that correct?

5      MS. JOHNSON:  Yes, that is

6  correct.

7      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  And does the

8  protest also state the remedy that's

9  requested?

10      MS. JOHNSON:  It does request a

11  remedy, yes.

12      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  And was this

13  timely filed in accordance with the

14  statute?

15      MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

16      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  I don't have

17  any further questions about that.

18      MR. MCANULTY:  Does anyone else

19  have any questions about the protest?

20      And, Mr. Allen, I'd ask that you

21  speak into the microphone.  I don't

22  hear the best in the world.  So I -- I

23  didn't -- I didn't hear you clearly, but I
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1  think I got the gist of it.

2      All right.  If no one has any

3  questions, Mr. Johnson, as the

4  protestor, we'll ask you to step forward

5  and give us your thoughts.  Come here to

6  the stand, please.

7  (MR. JOHNSON COMPLIES WITH REQUEST.)

8      MR. ALLEN:  Start out by having

9  you first state your name and legal

10  residence.

11      MR. JOHNSON:  Okay.  My name is

12  Thomas Hayes Johnson, 7216 Lansdowne

13  Place, Thomasville, NC 27360.

14      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.

15      MR. MCANULTY:  Precede, sir.  Go

16  ahead, sir.

17      MR. JOHNSON:  All right.  I was a

18  candidate in the the Trinity at-large seat

19  election and, on 11/3, at the polls, I --

20  I saw Ms. Bridges there, but I wasn't

21  aware, at that time, that she had voted.

22  Mr. McNabb, on 11/4, contacted me to tell

23  me that he had talked with Ms. Bridges at
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1  the polls and she indicated she had cast a

2  ballot and it was general knowledge, most

3  -- to everybody that she was no longer a

4  resident or did not live in Trinity.

5      MR. ALLEN:  Could -- Could I have

6  you explain that a little bit better?

7  When you say general knowledge --

8      MR. ALLEN:  Well, we're a small

9  town.  She was a council member.  I was a

10  prior council member.  And just knowing

11  the same people in general -- and it's

12  just, like I said, a small town and people

13  know where people are a whole lot.

14      MR. ALLEN:  Did you know where she

15  used to live and where she --

16      MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.  She lived

17  close to some friends of mine over on 3977

18  Carriage House Circle.

19      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  And do you know

20  when she vacated that residence?

21      MR. JOHNSON:  According to the

22  Randolph County records, the house was

23  sold June the 8th of 2015.
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1      MR. ALLEN:  And do you have any

2  knowledge aside from the tax records?

3      MR. JOHNSON:  No, I do not.

4      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  Do -- Do you

5  know who lives there now?

6      MR. JOHNSON:  Sonia and John

7  Hamlin.

8      MR. ALLEN:  Do you know them?

9      MR. JOHNSON:  No, I do not.

10      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  You -- You can

11  continue.

12      MR. JOHNSON:  Okay.  So after

13  being contacted by Mr. McNabb and he --

14  and, in our conversation, I -- I got the

15  feeling that, when she went to the polls,

16  that she had cast a vote and that she had

17  declared her place of residency as being

18  Morehead City.  That's -- That's the way I

19  -- in the gist of the conversation I

20  understood it.  So I didn't question that

21  she is -- actually stated a wrong address

22  or whatever, but her registration still

23  showed as 3977 Carriage House Circle and
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1  that she was allowed to cast a vote.

2      Now, I couldn't confirm that she

3  was allowed to cast a vote until the

4  postings from the election went on the

5  county website, and then I was able to

6  look and I could see that she had cast a

7  vote in the election at the voting site.

8  And, at that point, I contacted Melissa at

9  the board and I really wanted to just file

10  a challenge, and she said it was too late

11  to file a challenge, that you could do an

12  election protest.  And to tell you the

13  truth, I was really torn about doing such

14  a thing because our city is such a turmoil

15  anyway or seems to be.  And so I was

16  really -- really had a difficult time with

17  making the decision to do that.  I didn't

18  take it lightly at all and -- but I did,

19  on the very last day that I could file it,

20  in the last hour, I did submit the

21  documents and, like I said, it was not a

22  easy -- easy thing for me to do.

23      MR. ALLEN:  Could you explain to
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1  us, in detail, exactly what it was that

2  you did to try to determine what this

3  challenged voter's actual residence was?

4      MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.  Mostly

5  everything that I had, just public records

6  from the Randolph County GIS and the

7  Randolph County Board of Election sites,

8  which was tax records, they showed the

9  addresses of her property and it was no

10  longer owned by David and Karen Bridges

11  and that they had a new residence, which

12  was in Carteret County, in Morehead City,

13  and I couldn't find any other property

14  listings for -- for them within Randolph

15  County.  And since the deed date was June

16  the 8th of 2015, my assumption was she was

17  no longer a resident in Trinity, North

18  Carolina.

19      MR. ALLEN:  Do you have any

20  knowledge whether or not she might have

21  had any rental property?

22      MR. JOHNSON:  No, I do not.

23      MR. ALLEN:  I don't have any
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1  further questions.

2      MR. MCANULTY:  Let me ask you,

3  Mr. Johnson, in your protest, you have

4  given us, the board, a -- a way to take

5  care of this situation, as to not allow

6  Ms. Bridges' vote and to recount the

7  votes.

8      Now, I'm not being flip in what I

9  say to you, but I've had several

10  questions asked along those lines, and

11  there is absolutely no way that this Board

12  of Elections can find Ms. Bridges' ballot

13  because once you go on election day into

14  that polling place, mark your ballot and

15  take it and put it through that tabulator,

16  the identity of the person that marked

17  that ballot is lost for eternity.

18      So I just wanted to make that

19  point clear, and I'm not being critical of

20  you in any way in making that point to

21  you.

22      MR. JOHNSON:  Right.  Well, in

23  talking with Melissa at the board, she did
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1  advise me to that fact.  And so I don't

2  know -- the other resolution is a new

3  election, and I really feel bad about

4  doing a new election because that's

5  taxpayer money that has to be spent to do

6  that election and I do feel bad about

7  going that route, but I was just seeking a

8  resolution to the problem.

9      MR. ALLEN:  I understand.

10      MS. MEGERIAN:  And I had a couple

11  of questions about other attachments that

12  you have provided.

13      MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, ma'am

14      MS. MEGERIAN:  Attachment Number

15  1, you had included a printout from what

16  appears to be a letter to the editor.

17      MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, ma'am

18      MS. MEGERIAN:  Can you explain

19  where that's from and why you included it

20  in the protest?

21      MR. JOHNSON:  Just down at the

22  bottom, it shows that her --

23      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  First of all,
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1  what --

2      MR. JOHNSON:  -- letter was

3  addressed from Morehead City.

4      MR. ALLEN:  What --

5      MS. MEGERIAN:  What --

6      MR. ALLEN:  What newspaper is

7  that?  What publication?

8      MR. JOHNSON:  Highpoint

9  Enterprise.  I'm sorry.

10      MR. ALLEN:  What date?

11      MR. JOHNSON:  That was October 31,

12  2015.

13      MS. MEGARIAN:  And you said that

14  her -- you mean Karen Bridges is the bio

15  -- the attributed author is Karen

16  Bridges, Morehead City?

17      MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, ma'am

18      MS. MEGARIAN:  Did you -- Have you

19  had any conversations with Ms. Bridges

20  about her residence or about this issue?

21      MR. JOHNSON:  No, ma'am, I have

22  not.

23      MS. MEGARIAN:  And on some of the
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1  GIS data that you printed out and attached

2  to your protest --

3      MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

4      MS. MEGARIAN:  -- you also

5  included the Carteret County property

6  data?

7      MR. JOHNSON:  Just -- Just, in

8  general, the property data for Carteret

9  County, yes.

10      MS. MEGERIAN:  And it looks like,

11  from the printout that you provided, it

12  shows a sale date of July 5th, 2012.  Did

13  you do any follow-up --

14      MR. JOHNSON:  No, ma'am, I did

15  not.

16      MS. MEGARIAN:  -- looking at any

17  deeds, anything?

18      MR. JOHNSON:  No, nothing further

19  about Carteret County or any of that.  No,

20  I did not.

21      MS. MEGERIAN:  Thank you. Those

22  are all my questions.

23      MR. MCANULTY:  Do you have any
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1  further questions?

2      MR. ALLEN:  I do not.

3      MR. MCANULTY:  I have no further

4  quest -- well, yes, I do.  One other

5  question.  You offered Mr. McNabb as a

6  witness on your behalf?

7      MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

8      MR. MCANULTY:  And if you want him

9  to testify,

10      I'm going to ask you to call him

11  because I don't feel that's my place to

12  call him since --

13      MR. JOHNSON:  All right.

14      MR. MCNAULTY:  -- he's your

15  witness.

16      MR. JOHNSON:  Mr. Mc --

17      MR. ALLEN:  You can -- You can

18  have a seat, by the way --

19      MR. JOHNSON:  Okay.

20      MR. ALLEN:  -- back at the table

21  and you call him and he'll --

22      MR. JOHNSON:  All right.

23      MR. ALLEN:  -- sit there at the
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1  witness stand.

2  (MR. JOHNSON COMPLIES WITH REQUEST.)

3      MR. JOHNSON:  So I would like to

4  call Mr. Richard McNabb to the stand,

5  please.

6      MR. MCANULTY:  Mr. McNabb, would

7  you please come forward.

8  (MR. MCNABB COMPLIES WITH REQUEST.)

9      MR. MCANULTY:  So that Mr. Allen

10  won't have to ask you to do this, I'd ask

11  you to give your full name and address,

12  please, sir.

13      MR. MCNABB:  Richard Eugene

14  McNabb, at 6923 Stone Gables Drive,

15  Thomasville, NC 27360.

16      MR. MCANULTY:  Now, Mr. --

17  Mr. Johnson, if you'd prefer, you can ask

18  him questions or we'll just let him give

19  his testimony.

20      MR. JOHNSON:  Let's just let him

21  give his testimony.

22      MR. MCANULTY:  Just give us your

23  testimony then, sir.
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1      MR. MCNABB:  Voting day, we -- me

2  and my wife went to vote.  Karen, Linda,

3  and one of the council members, Debbie --

4  I believe one of the council members -- I

5  don't remember her name -- was on the left

6  side.  Tommy, his wife, and some fella was

7  with him on the right side and we stopped

8  and chatted with Karen and Linda and the

9  council person, and I asked the question

10  what are you doing here, kinda that way,

11  and she was -- come to support -- work the

12  polls and vote, if she could, and I said

13  did you vote?  Yeah, I said -- I told them

14  that I lived in Morehead City, but I was

15  still registered.  So they said I could

16  vote, and I said really?  And she said

17  yeah.  We chatted a little bit longer and

18  I went over and talked to Tommy for a

19  minute or two and -- and I went in and

20  voted and come back out and told everybody

21  have a nice day, and then I left.

22      I had been told previously, on

23  Sunday, that she had come to town -- at
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1  church -- and -- and they were asking me

2  how she could vote, and I told them she

3  couldn't.  So that's why I kindly asked

4  that question, when we was talking at the

5  poll there, at -- at the tent they had.

6      MR. ALLEN:  Do you know the

7  challenger, Mr. Johnson?  Do you know

8  Mr. --

9      MR. JOHNSON:  Do I know him?

10      MR. ALLEN:  Yes.

11      MR. JOHNSON:  Oh, yeah, I know

12  everybody down that way that was over

13  there that day.

14      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  How long have

15  you known him?

16      MR. JOHNSON:  Oh, probably five or

17  six years.

18      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  What about the

19  protested vote, Ms. Bridges, do you know

20  her?

21      MR. JOHNSON:  Oh, yeah.  She

22  served city council.  She served with me

23  on the planning and zoning board.  I mean,
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1  I probably knowed [sic] her ever since

2  she's been on the council.

3      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  And did you

4  have any knowledge of where she was living

5  when she was in Trinity?

6      MR. JOHNSON:  When she lived in

7  Trinity?

8      MR. ALLEN:  Yes.

9      MR. JOHNSON:  Oh, yeah.  She lived

10  on -- off of Red Fox, Carriage Road, I

11  think, or Carriage House or Carriage some

12  or another.

13      MR. ALLEN:  And did you indicate

14  that you went to the same church as

15  Ms. Bridges, too?

16      MR. JOHNSON:  No

17      MR. ALLEN:  You did not?  Someone

18  else had told you that?

19      MR. JOHNSON:  Yeah.  When I went

20  to church, Sunday before election, one of

21  the choir members asked me -- said she's

22  come to town to work and she's going to

23  vote and whatever, how can she do that?
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1      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  But that --

2      MR. JOHNSON:  -- she moved out of

3  town.  And I said she can't vote.  She's

4  moved out of town.

5      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  Now -- And so

6  you mentioned, when you were testifying

7  earlier, that you ran into her -- you

8  encountered her on election day.

9      MR. JOHNSON:  I went to what, sir?

10      MR. ALLEN:  You encountered her on

11  election day; is that right?

12      MR. JOHNSON:  Yeah.

13      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  And you said

14  that, when you encountered her, she said

15  that she had come to the polls and -- to

16  vote, if she could.  Is that exactly what

17  she said?

18      MR. JOHNSON:  Well, something

19  similar to that, because after I was told

20  that at church, I was kind of questioned,

21  if she was going to vote or what, and --

22  and I asked her, after she said that, I

23  said, well, I thought you moved out of
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1  town and that's when she told me she told

2  the -- the register people that --

3      MR. ALLEN:  So she had not voted

4  at that point?  Is that what you're

5  saying?

6      MR. JOHNSON:  I believe she had

7  voted, because it was the middle of the

8  day.

9      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  But you said --

10  she said -- the first thing she said to

11  you was that she came to -- come there to

12  vote, according to those people --

13      MR. JOHNSON:  That she come to

14  help Linda work the poll and --

15      MR. ALLEN:  Right.

16      MR. JOHNSON:  -- and -- and see if

17  she could vote.

18      MR. ALLEN:  And -- To see if she

19  could vote.  Okay.  And then you asked her

20  about her residence?

21      MR. JOHNSON:  Well, I asked her

22  did she get to vote.  She said yeah.  She

23  told the man that she had moved, but she
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1  was still on the register and said, if she

2  hadn't transferred it, she was allowed to

3  vote.

4      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  But -- And did

5  she indicate to you where she lived?

6      MR. JOHNSON:  I asked her where

7  she lived, did she still live at -- did

8  you move down east.  I didn't know where

9  she moved, because she resigned from the

10  planning and zoning board and all I knowed

11  [sic], she'd moved east and she told me

12  she lived in Morehead City

13      MR. ALLEN:  When did she resign

14  from the planning and zoning board?

15      MR. JOHNSON:  I couldn't give you

16  that date, but it's been six or seven

17  months ago, I think.

18      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  Did she give a

19  reason at that time why she was resigning?

20      MR. JOHNSON:  She was moving out

21  of town.

22      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.

23      MR. JOHNSON:  Moving east is what
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1  I was told.

2      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  And she -- did

3  she did tell you that she had moved to --

4  did she say Morehead City or did she just

5  say down east?

6      MR. JOHNSON:  No.  She told me

7  Morehead City, because I asked her

8  specifically where, because I didn't know.

9      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.

10      MR. JOHNSON:  She -- yeah, I'm --

11  I'm -- I live in Morehead City now.

12      MR. ALLEN:  Were you with

13  Ms. Bridges when --- on the planning and

14  zoning board when she resigned?

15      MR. JOHNSON:  Um-hmm.  I was the

16  chair -- yeah, I was the chairman.

17      MR. ALLEN:  You were the chair and

18  she was a member?

19      MR. JOHNSON:  Yeah, she was a

20  member.

21      MR. ALLEN:  And she resigned

22  because she had moved?

23      MR. JOHNSON:  Yeah, she -- she --
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1  she -- she come on the board and then she

2  moved a few months later.

3      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.

4      MR. JOHNSON:  She had been a city

5  council member before.

6      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  Thank you,

7  Mr. McNabb.  I don't have anything

8  further.

9      MR. MCANULTY:  Ms. Megerian?

10      MS. MEGERIAN:  I believe -- I

11  believe Mr. Allen covered it.  Thank you.

12      MR. MCANULTY:  I don't have any

13  questions, sir.  Thank you.

14      MR. MCNABB:  Okay.

15      MR. MCANULTY:  Next we'll call

16  Ms. Karen Bridges.

17  (MS. BRIDGES APPROACHES WITNESS STAND.)

18      MR. MCANULTY:  Please

19      MS. BRIDGES:  Hello.

20      MR. MCANULTY:  Good afternoon.

21  Please state your full name and address,

22  please.

23      MS. BRIDGES:  My name is Karen
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1  Bridges, and I live at 1206 Avery Street,

2  Morehead City, North Carolina.

3      MR. MCANULTY:  Would you please

4  give us your testimony in this matter.

5      MS. BRIDGES:  Yes.  I did not come

6  here to vote.  I came here to help out at

7  the polls.  While I was standing there, I

8  was talking with some of the people that I

9  was with and I said, well, I haven't

10  registered anywhere else.  I went in and

11  asked if I could vote.

12      What Mr. McNabb said is false.  I

13  did not give my Morehead City address to

14  the poll worker because I was not asked

15  it.  I said that I had moved and I had not

16  registered anywhere else and I wanted to

17  know if I could still vote there, and I

18  was told by the poll worker, if your name

19  is on the books, you may vote and he asked

20  my name and he asked what address was

21  listed with my name.  I understood that to

22  mean that he was -- he wanted to verify

23  that it was me.  I said, well, I will show
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1  you my ID.  And he goes no, we're not

2  asking for IDs this election.  Next

3  election, we will.

4      So, I was allowed to vote and I

5  told the poll worker, I said I do not want

6  to commit voting fraud, but if I can --

7  you know, if I can vote, I -- I don't live

8  here now, but I have not registered

9  anywhere else, so -- and I haven't voted

10  anywhere else, and I was allowed to vote.

11      MR. MCANULTY:  So your testimony

12  is you did not give the poll worker that

13  was register -- registering you to vote a

14  Morehead City, North Carolina, address; is

15  that --

16      MS. BRIDGES:  That is true.

17      MR. MCNAULTY:  -- correct?

18      MS. BRIDGES:  I did not.

19      MR. MCNAULTY:  Okay.

20      MS. BRIDGES:  So what Mr. McNabb

21  said, that I told the poll worker I lived

22  in Morehead City, I did not.

23      MR. MCANULTY:  Mr. Allen?
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1      MR. ALLEN:  Now, Ms. Bridges --

2  well, I want to talk first about the

3  details of where you were living.

4      Now,  you formerly lived in

5  Trinity; correct?

6      MS. BRIDGES:  Correct.

7      MR. ALLEN:  What was the address?

8      MS. BRIDGES:  3977 Carriage House

9  Circle.

10      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  And at the time

11  you were living here, for some period of

12  time, you were on the planning and zoning

13  board?

14      MS. BRIDGES:  I served 12 years

15  on Council.  I was on planning and zoning,

16  then I was on City Council for 12 years,

17  then I served on planning and zoning

18  again.

19      MR. ALLEN:  When did you resign

20  from the planning and zoning board?.

21      MS. BRIDGES:  Oh, gosh, I'm not

22  sure, Maybe February.

23      MR. ALLEN:  Of 2014 or 2015?
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1      MS. BRIDGES:  2015.

2      MR. ALLEN:  2015?

3      MS. BRIDGES:  Wait -- Yes.

4      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.

5      MS. BRIDGES:  Um-hmm.

6      MR. ALLEN:  Did you resign because

7  you had moved?

8      MS. BRIDGES:  No.  I was in the

9  process of trying to sell my house and I

10  -- I -- I didn't want to be on coun -- on

11  planning and zoning anymore.

12      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  When did you

13  put your house up for sale?

14      MS. BRIDGES:  Probably January

15  2015.

16      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  And when did

17  you sell it?

18      MS. BRIDGES:  June.

19      MR. ALLEN:  June of?

20      MS. BRIDGES:  2015.

21      MR. ALLEN:  2015.  Okay.

22      MS. BRIDGES:  Um-hmm.

23      MR. ALLEN:  When you sold that
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1  house, did -- where did you go?

2      MS. BRIDGES:  I went to Morehead

3  City.

4      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  Did you buy a

5  house there?

6      MS. BRIDGES:  We had had a house

7  there for a couple of years.

8      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  So you moved

9  into what was a vacation home before?

10      MS. BRIDGES:  Yes.

11      MR. ALLEN:  And what was the --

12  what was the address of your new

13  residence?

14      MS. BRIDGES:  The same as I just

15  gave, 1206 Avery Street.

16      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  And when was it

17  that you moved to Morehead City then?

18      MS. BRIDGES:  It would have -- It

19  was in June.

20      MR. ALLEN:  In June of 2015?

21      MS. BRIDGES:  Yes.

22      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  And did you

23  change your driver's license after you
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1  moved?

2      MS. BRIDGES:  No.

3      MR. ALLEN:  You did not?

4      MS. BRIDGES:  No.

5      MR. ALLEN:  There was a lot of

6  stuff going on in my life personally at

7  the time, and so, no, I didn't,

8      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  But you don't

9  dispute that Morehead City was your

10  residence as of election date 2015?

11      MS. BRIDGES:  No, I don't dispute

12  that.

13      MR. ALLEN:  And you don't dispute

14  that that was your residence as of 30 days

15  before you voted; right?

16      MS. BRIDGES:  Correct.

17      MR. ALLEN:  You did not live in

18  Trinity at that time?

19      MS. BRIDGES:  Correct.

20      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  Now, you -- you

21  -- your testimony was that you came back

22  to Trinity around the time of election day

23  in order to support your candidate; right?
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1      MS. BRIDGES:  Well, to offer

2  support, yes.

3      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  And to work the

4  polls?

5      MS. BRIDGES:  Um-hmm.

6      MR. ALLEN:  And your testimony was

7  that, when you showed up, you didn't show

8  up intending to vote; is that right?

9      MS. BRIDGES:  Correct.

10      MR. ALLEN:  But you decided, at

11  some point in time, to go enter into the

12  polling place and check; is that right?

13      MS. BRIDGES:  I talked with --

14  yeah.  I was talking with the people I was

15  with and I said, well, I don't know if I

16  can do that.  And they said, well, why

17  don't you just go in and ask.  It can't

18  hurt to ask.

19      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.

20      MS. BRIDGES:  All they can do is

21  say no.

22      MR. ALLEN:  But your testimony

23  just now was though that when you went in,
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1  you never actually told them that you

2  lived in Morehead City?

3      MS. BRIDGES:  No.  They didn't

4  ask.

5      MR. ALLEN:  Because they didn't

6  ask, you didn't tell them that?

7      MS. BRIDGES:  I told them I had

8  moved from Trinity.

9      MR. ALLEN:  But you didn't tell

10  them you had moved out of Trinity?

11      MS. BRIDGES:  No, but I wasn't

12  asked that.

13      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  Now, do you

14  remember that, when you came in to vote,

15  you have to sign a document?

16      MS. BRIDGES:  Yes.

17      MR. ALLEN:  Authorization to vote?

18      MS. BRIDGES:  Um-hmm.

19     (EXHIBIT NO. 2 WAS MARKED.)

20      MR. ALLEN:  I'm now showing what's

21  been marked as Exhibit No. 2.  Could you

22  look at that?

23      MS. BRIDGES:  Okay.
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1      MR. ALLEN:  Was that the document

2  you signed?

3      MS. BRIDGES:  It is.

4      MR. ALLEN:  That's your signature?

5      MS. BRIDGES:  It is.

6      MR. ALLEN:  And right above that,

7  there's a -- there's a line that says --

8  and read along with me, if you can -- I

9  understand that, if I have moved from this

10  residence more than 30 days ago, it is a

11  violation of North Carolina -- North

12  Carolina law to claim my old address as --

13      MS. BRIDGES:  I'm sorry, where are

14  you look -- I -- I don't know where you're

15  seeing that.

16      MR. ALLEN:  Sure.

17      MS. MEGERIAN:  Let -- Let me help

18  out.  It starts, I hereby certify --

19      MS. BRIDGES:  Oh, okay.

20      MS. MEGERIAN:  -- that the address

21  above --

22      MS. BRIDGES:  Okay.

23      MS. MEGERIAN:  -- is where I
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1  currently live --

2      MS. BRIDGES:  Okay.  All right.

3      MS. MEGERIAN:  -- or is corrected

4  below.

5      MS. BRIDGES:  Um-hmm.

6      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.

7      MS. MEGERIAN:  I understand that,

8  if I have moved from this address more

9  than 30 days ago, it is a violation of

10  North Carolina law to claim my old address

11  as my voting address.  I further certify

12  I've not voted in this election.  And

13  directly below that line is your signature

14  and the initials of the poll worker.

15      MS. BRIDGES:  Right.

16      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  So you --

17      MS. MEGERIAN:  Did you read that?

18      MS. BRIDGES:  Well, I see it on

19  there.

20      MS. MEGERIAN:  No, did you read it

21  when you signed it?

22      MS. BRIDGES:  No.  I mean, no.  He

23  printed it out and said, you know, sign
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1  here, but I -- he did not ask where I was

2  currently residing.

3      Mr. ALLEN:  Okay.  Now, you do

4  understand, though, that -- that the

5  document itself, the document you

6  signed, --

7      MS. BRIDGES:  I see -- I see that

8  on there, um-hmm.

9      Mr. ALLEN:  Okay.  And if you look

10  up at the top there, underneath the

11  Authorization to Vote form, there's

12  another box that says fraudulently or

13  falsely completing this form is a Class I

14  felony.  Do you see that?

15      MS. BRIDGES:  I do see that.

16      Mr. ALLEN:  Okay.

17      MS. BRIDGES:  But -- And I said to

18  them I do not want to commit voting fraud

19  and went right on printed the thing out

20  and said just sign here and I went on and

21  did that, so --

22      Mr. ALLEN:  I don't know that I

23  have anything further.
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1      MS. MEGERIAN:  Did you, at the

2  time, fill out the election day transfer

3  or -- or try to transfer your --

4      MS. BRIDGES:  The gentleman asked

5  me if I wanted to and I told him, no, I

6  didn't want to do it that day.  Yeah, I

7  didn't want to do it that day, and I still

8  haven't done it, so...

9      MS. MEGERIAN:  And at any time did

10  you indicate that you had voted -- that

11  you were -- had moved out of the county?

12      MS. BRIDGES:  No.

13      MS. MEGERIAN:  So you just said

14  I've moved -- I've moved?

15      MS. BRIDGES:  Let me think about

16  that.  I told him I had not registered

17  anywhere else.

18      MS. MEGERIAN:  But I guess what

19  I'm asking is --

20      MS. BRIDGES:  I don't think I told

21  him that I had moved out of the county.  I

22  -- I don't -- I don't think I did.  I

23  don't recall.
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1      MS. MEGERIAN:  Do you recall

2  exactly what you told him besides I've

3  moved?  I haven't registered anywhere

4  else.

5      MS. BRIDGES:  I think that's -- I

6  think that's all I said and that I did not

7  want to commit voting fraud, but if I --

8  could I continue -- could I vote there,

9  and he said, if your name is on the books,

10  you may vote.

11      MS. MEGERIAN:  And when was it

12  that you moved to Morehead City?

13      MS. BRIDGES:  June.

14      MS. MEGERIAN:  June.  Okay.  And

15  we'd -- we've asked about residency

16  several times.  Are you employed?

17      MS. BRIDGES:  No.

18      MS. MEGERIAN:  Do you -- Is -- The

19  move to Morehead City, did you intend that

20  to be a temporary one?

21      MS. BRIDGES:  No.

22      MS. MEGERIAN:  Those are my

23  questions then.
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1      MR. ALLEN:  I'd just like to offer

2  that exhibit --

3      MS. BRIDGES:  Okay.

4      MR. ALLEN:  -- Exhibit No. 2, the

5  ATV.  Are you keeping the documents?

6  (MR. ALLEN APPROACHES MS. JOHNSON AND

7    HANDS EXHIBIT TO MS. JOHNSON.)

8      MR. MCANULTY:  I have no further

9  questions --

10      MS. BRIDGES:  Okay

11      MR. MCNAULTY:  -- Ms. Bridges.

12  (MS. BRIDGES LEAVES WITNESS STAND.)

13      MR. MCANULTY:  Now, I'm going to

14  have to ask for some information, because

15  I do not know who was doing what at the

16  polls on election day.  So who was manning

17  the -- I'll call it the laptop when

18  Ms. Bridges came to -- and maybe I ought

19  to ask Ms. Bridges that, if she knew the

20  -- and I'll recall Ms. Bridges and ask

21  her that question.

22      Do you know the person's name that

23  was working the laptop when you went to

JOHNSON 74



Page 44
1  register to vote?

2      MS. BRIDGES:  Yes.  It was Mr. --

3      MR. MCANULTY:  Please stand up and

4  -- I can't hear you.

5      MS. BRIDGES:  Mr. Reeder.

6      MR. ALLEN:  It -- It's on the ATV.

7      MR. MCANULTY:  Mr. Reeder?  Is

8  Mr. Reeder here?

9      MR. REEDER:  Yes, right here.

10      MR. MCANULTY:  Would you please

11  step forward, please, sir.

12  (MR. REEDER APPROACHES WITNESS STAND.)

13      MR. MCANULTY:  Mr. Reeder, please

14  state your full name and address, please,

15  sir.

16      MR. REEDER:  Gary Dale Reeder,

17  3968 Shannon Drive, Trinity, North

18  Carolina.

19      MR. MCANULTY:  Now, give us your

20  testimony of what happened at the point

21  that Ms. Bridges came to your station to

22  register to vote.

23      MR. REEDER:  Well, we see a lot of

JOHNSON 75



Page 45
1  people that day, so I can't really

2  remember everything that happened with

3  everybody that came through there.  I

4  vaguely remember her.  And what we're

5  told, when we did this training, is that,

6  if a person can vote, you vote them.

7  That's the most important thing --

8      MR. MCANULTY:  I understand.

9      MR. REEDER:  -- that they vote.

10  If their name is on that list that we're

11  given on that computer, we have a thing

12  down there and, if it says can vote, then

13  we can vote them.  That's what it tells

14  us.  And whatever may have happened, she

15  could not have voted -- I could not have

16  pushed that button if it didn't say she

17  could vote.  It's just that simple.  I

18  mean, that's -- you know, it wouldn't be

19  on the computer that she could.  That's

20  what they tell us.

21      So I don't know what else you

22  would expect a person to do.  If you've

23  got their name in there and it's still on
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1  that computer and it says can vote, you

2  can't turn them away.  You can't say you

3  can't vote.  You have to let them vote.

4  So that's my point right there, you know.

5      MR. MCANUTLY:  Well, let me ask

6  you this question:  Did you ask her

7  specifically for her address?

8      MR. REEDER:  We're supposed to ask

9  them for their address and we read it off

10  of what we've got on our computer.

11      MR. MCNAULTY:  Did you --

12      MR. REEDER:  Yeah.

13      MR. MCNAULTY:  -- ask her for --

14      MR. REEDER:  Yes.

15      MR. MCNAULTY:  -- her address?

16      MR. REEDER:  Yes.  We ask their

17  name --

18      MR. MCNAULTY:  And what address

19  did she give you?

20      MR. REEDER:  I can't recall

21  exactly, sir, because, like I say, we go

22  through a lot of people that day --

23      MR. MCNAULTY:  I understand.

JOHNSON 77



Page 47
1      MR. ALLEN:  Could you tell us

2  whether --

3      MR. REEDER:  -- and there's no

4  way --

5      MR. ALLEN:  I'm sorry.  Could you

6  tell us whether or not it matched what was

7  actually in the poll book?

8      MR. REEDER:  It matched what was

9  there.

10      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.

11      MR. REEDER:  I would say so.  Like

12  I say, I cannot remember everything.

13      MR. ALLEN:  I understand.

14      MR. REEDER:  I just remember going

15  -- you know, we vote these people in and

16  we read the address and we match it and

17  then we see this thing go up at the bottom

18  that says they can vote or cannot.  If we

19  have to change an address, the ballot

20  would be marked that it had been changed.

21      MR. ALLEN:  Um-hmm.

22      MR. REEDER:  And that would show,

23  you know.  If it had the address that's on
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1  that ballot, then that's what it said on

2  the computer and that's how they voted.

3      MR. ALLEN:  And do you -- do you

4  recall whether or not she mentioned to you

5  the fact that she had moved from that

6  address?

7      MR. REEDER:  Like I say, I cannot

8  even remember her hardly.  There's so many

9  people.  You know, we're up -- we're up

10  from 3 o'clock in the morning 'til late at

11  night and you go through the whole day,

12  you know, and it -- it is just -- I'll be

13  honest, I cannot remember all those faces

14  and names and everything.

15      MR. ALLEN:  Certainly.  And that's

16  understandable.

17      MR. REEDER:  Yeah.

18      MR. ALLEN:  If someone had told

19  you that, though, based on your training,

20  what do you expect you would have done?

21      MR. REEDER:  If they had told me

22  they lived in another place, we would have

23  had to see if -- you know, do all that
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1  stuff and see if they changed their

2  address and all that stuff.

3      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.

4      MR. REEDER:  It's just -- We go

5  through so many people, you know, there's

6  no way I could remember all that stuff.

7      MR. ALLEN:  Right.  I understand.

8      MR. MCNAULTY:  Let me ask a

9  question, Mr. Reeder.  You say, if she had

10  given you a different address, what had

11  you have been trained to do?

12      MR. REEDER:  If she had moved out,

13  well, she couldn't vote, you know.

14      MR. MCNAULTY:  Okay.  But let's

15  say -- let's say she gave you another

16  address -- and I'm giving you a

17  hypothetical now -- if she gave you

18  another address in Trinity that didn't

19  match --

20      MR. REEDER:  If she -- We would

21  ask if she wanted to change to her new

22  address and then we could change that in

23  the computer.
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1      MR. MCNAULTY:  And it would show

2  on that ATV --

3      MR. REEDER:  And it would show on

4  that, yeah, and there's a way you can run

5  it through the system and then it would

6  show.  But -- But regardless of that, the

7  -- exactly what I'm saying, at the end,

8  if it says they cannot vote, it will say

9  at the bottom there and we can't vote

10  them.  You cannot vote if it don't say you

11  can on that -- on the computer.

12      MR. MCNAULTY:  And let me ask one

13  other question, and I think she's

14  testified that -- well, I'm sure she

15  testified that she did not tell you that

16  she lived in Morehead City, but had she

17  told you that she lived in Morehead City,

18  North Carolina, and you put -- would you

19  have put that in the computer?

20      MR. REEDER:  Yeah, if that's what

21  she told us.

22      MR. MCNAULTY:  And if -- if you

23  did that, in -- in your experiences
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1  running that laptop, what would have

2  happened?

3      MR. REEDER:  It would have

4  probably -- if it -- if she was not

5  allowed to vote, they would already have

6  got it down to the office and it would be

7  on -- not on the computers.

8      MR. MCNAULTY:  I have no further

9  questions.

10      MR. ALLEN:  Just -- Just one quick

11  -- this shouldn't take too long.  I just

12  -- Can I see the Exhibit 2 again because

13  I have to authenticate that, too?

14     (MR. ALLEN RETRIEVES EXHIBIT

15       FROM MS. JOHNSON.)

16      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  I'm going to

17  show you -- show you the Authorization to

18  Vote that Ms. Bridges indicated that she'd

19  signed.  Is that your initial right there?

20      MR. REEDER:  Yes, sir.

21      MR. ALLEN:  And did you actually

22  sign underneath that?  Is that your

23  signature, or is that someone else's
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1  handwriting?

2      MR. REEDER:  No, I didn't sign

3  that.

4      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.

5      MR. REEDER:  That's not my --

6  That's not my handwriting.

7      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  You didn't sign

8  the part where it lists your name, but you

9  did put your initials; right?

10      MR. REEDER:  Yeah.

11      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  Nothing

12  further.

13      MR. MCNAULTY:  Do you have any

14  questions, Ms. Megerian?

15      MS. MEGERIAN:  I guess one last

16  question.  I'm sorry to belabor the point,

17  but If somebody comes in and you're

18  pulling up the ATV and they state to you

19  that they've moved, what are --

20      MR. REEDER:  Yeah.

21      MS. MEGERIAN:  You've received

22  training to do this.  What are you trained

23  to do at that point?
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1      MR. REEDER:  Well, you -- you -- I

2  -- I'd have to see the screen in front of

3  me, you know, because it's a computer and

4  then I can't remember, but you have a

5  change of address button you hit, then you

6  change their address or you can check

7  their old address.  At any rate, you put

8  it through the system, their -- the

9  address they give you, and if it don't

10  match what's on the computer, then it will

11  say they cannot vote.

12      MS. MEGERIAN:  Okay.  So -- But --

13      MR. REEDER:  And that's what we

14  have to go by.  We don't know all these

15  things.  All we have is what we can put in

16  there and see down at the bottom.  We

17  watch down at the bottom and what it tells

18  us down there is all we have to go by.

19      MS. MEGERIAN:  But if somebody

20  came in and said I voted, are you trained

21  to them just tell me your old address?

22  Wouldn't you have them --

23      MR. REEDER:  Just tell me your old

JOHNSON 84



Page 54
1  address?

2      MS. MEGERIAN:  Um-hmm.  I've

3  moved, so -- yeah, if -- if somebody comes

4  in and says I've moved. I would like to

5  vote --

6      MR. REEDER:  Yeah.

7      MS. MEGERIAN:  -- you then ask for

8  their current address; correct?

9      MR. REEDER:  Yeah, they have to --

10  they have to verify that they -- you know,

11  if they've changed it or whatever.

12      MS. MEGERIAN:  Okay.  That --

13  That's --

14      MR. REEDER:  Within --

15      MS. MEGERIAN:  -- that's my --

16      MR. REEDER:  -- within the time,

17  you know, or whatever.

18      MS. MEGERIAN:  That -- That's my

19  only question.

20      MR. REEDER:  Yeah.

21      MR. MCNAULTY:  Anybody have any

22  further questions for Mr. Reeder?  If not,

23  we'll excuse you, Mr. Reeder, and thank
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1  you.

2      MR. REEDER:  Um-humm

3      MR. MCNAULTY:  Do either of you

4  two board members wish to call any other

5  witnesses?

6      MS. MEGERIAN:  No.

7      MR. MCNAULTY:  I do not, but is

8  there anyone here that would -- that has

9  any facts in this matter that would like

10  to testify?

11      MR. BOYLES:  I would, sir.

12      MR. MCNAULTY:  Please come

13  forward.

14  (MR. BOYLES APPROACHES WITNESS STAND.)

15      MR. MCNAULTY:  Please state your

16  full name and address, sir.

17      MR. BOYLES:  My name is Carlton T.

18  Boyles.  I live at 6834 Dawn Acres Drive,

19  Trinity, North Carolina.  I met Karen

20  Bridges in November of 2001.  We served

21  together four years on the council.  I

22  became very much aware just how

23  intelligent she was.
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1      At the polling place, we had a

2  number of occasions to give instructions

3  to people to vote.  One person lived down

4  near Sofia and they had a Trinity address

5  and he said I want to vote.  We said if

6  you're not a citizen of Trinity, duly

7  registered, you cannot vote in our city

8  election.  That disappointed him, but

9  that's -- that was what I've always

10  believed.

11      Our charter states that anyone

12  serving on the council has to live in

13  their ward.  They have to be duly

14  registered and they have to be a resident

15  of Trinity.  So I think the same thing

16  holds true for the ones on the council,

17  just like it does a citizen.

18      I ran for reelection as mayor of

19  Trinity in 2009 and Karen was on the

20  council at that time.  I believe that a

21  majority of the citizens of Trinity know

22  this very fact, you have to be a resident

23  of Trinity and you have to be duly
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1  registered in order to vote, and I'm a

2  little bit confused, the intelligence

3  level that I know Karen has, to not

4  understand that.

5      When I was at the beach, my

6  daughter called me and said, Daddy,

7  there's an article in the newspaper that

8  someone might have illegally voted.  When

9  I went to the polling place, about 12:15

10  on the 3rd of November, there were two

11  people that did not live in the city of

12  Trinity helping in Tommy Johnson's case,

13  John Maddox, and in Linda's case, Karen

14  Bridges.  I did not find that to be

15  unusual. If there was anything unusual, it

16  would be to drive 200 miles to vote in the

17  election.  So the only thing that came to

18  my mind, surely, as intelligent as Karen

19  is, she wouldn't have tried to vote.

20      Well, I came back in town at 1

21  o'clock on the 21st of November.

22  When I got up about 9 o'clock, on the

23  front page it had Karen's picture and that
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1  she had -- I guess they had found some

2  kind of cause about her voting, and that's

3  really all I knew at the time.  That

4  afternoon, I did call Linda Gantt and

5  talked to her.

6      The article that was put in the

7  High Point Enterprise on October 31st by

8  Karen mentioned voting for Linda Gantt

9  three times, one time with an exclamation

10  point.  I believed that, in my mind and

11  Linda's mind, that Karen voted for her and

12  the article that she put there -- it's an

13  editorial -- always talked about what the

14  citizens of Trinity needed to do about

15  voting for Linda Gantt.  If she had known

16  that she could vote, I believe that she

17  would have used the plural, like we need

18  to elect Linda Gantt.  That was not in

19  that article.

20      I'm a little bit appalled,

21  spending ten years on the council and

22  serving as mayor.  I never, in my wildest

23  imagination, would have believed that
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1  anyone would have tried to vote in the

2  city election that was not registered --

3  duly registered and also a resident.

4      Early on, Trinity had three

5  precincts.  I did the preparation for a

6  census in 1999 and I knew the street

7  addresses, the locations, and if a person

8  come and tried to vote in the wrong

9  precinct, I would always instruct them the

10  proper precinct to go to and most of them

11  did.  I really am appalled for my city.  I

12  have to say that.  I feel for Karen.

13      In my mind -- I wrote a letter to

14  the Board of Elections, spent most of

15  yesterday doing that.  In my mind, since

16  we have a tie vote and we know that Karen

17  voted for Linda -- Linda said to me,

18  Carlton, she could have voted for you, you

19  know.  Linda needs to really realize

20  something, no one would drive 200 miles to

21  vote for me.

22      My wife came, with health problems

23  in July, after I signed up to run for this
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1  open seat.  I chose to deal with her

2  problem physically rather than try to go

3  door-to-door or try to get elected.  I did

4  tell Tommy Johnson, in October, that I was

5  not going to try to get elected.  Someone,

6  when my wife and I left the polling place,

7  hollered out, Carlton, we wondered where

8  you were.  Well, I was with my wife and

9  she had an operation on October the 30th.

10  We were at the polling place and I was

11  holding her arm to help her get back to

12  the car, but I wish this would have never

13  have happened.  I hope to Lord it never,

14  ever happens again.

15      MR. ALLEN:  I -- I don't have any

16  questions.

17      MR. MCNAULTY:  We thank you for

18  your testimony, sir.

19      MS. MEGERIAN:  Thank you.

20      MR. MCNAULTY:  And I have no

21  questions.  Do you, Mr. Allen?

22      MR. ALLEN:  No.

23      MR. MCNAULTY:  Ms. --
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1      MS. MEGERIAN:  No.

2      MR. MCNAULTY:  -- Megerian?

3      MS. MEGERIAN:  I -- I don't.

4      MR. MCNAULTY  Thank you --

5      MS. MEGERIAN:  Thank you.

6      MR. MCNAULTY:  -- sir.  We have no

7  questions.

8   (MR. BOYLES LEAVES WITNESS STAND.)

9      MR. MCNAULTY:  Is there anyone

10  else that would like to give any

11  testimony?

12      MS. GANTT:  Linda Gantt.

13      MR. MCNAULTY:  Please step

14  forward.

15  (MS. GANTT APPROACHES WITNESS STAND.)

16      MR. MCNAULTY:  Please state your

17  full name and address, please.

18      MS. GANTT:  Linda Gantt, 5916

19  Highway 62, Trinity, North Carolina 27370.

20  I've got laryngitis.

21      MR. ALLEN:  Just do the best you

22  can.

23      MR. MCNAULTY:  Okay.  Do the best
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1  you can.  I have, too.

2      MS. GANTT:  Okay.  Well, I want to

3  start off by saying that I'm sorry all

4  this has happened, and I really -- I agree

5  with Tommy.  I really don't want the city

6  to have to pay for a runoff.  But as far

7  as Karen coming up here, she called me and

8  said, Linda, you want me to come up there

9  and help you put out signs, pick up signs,

10  and I said, sure, if you'd like to come.

11      This is not the first time she's

12  been up here.  She's come when her

13  husband was in the hospital.  She's come

14  when she's had doctors appointments, and

15  I've known Karen all -- for 16 -- 18 years

16  and she is a friend.  But she came up.

17  She helped me get my -- some of my signs

18  up.  She stayed the next day.  She helped

19  me get signs up, and when she -- I didn't

20  know she even went in there to vote.  Then

21  when she come out, you know, I was busy.

22  I was standing out in the rain handing out

23  my cards and trying to talk to people.
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1      MR. ALLEN:  Yeah.  I don't think

2  anybody's accused you of having knowingly

3  done anything wrong in any way --

4      MS. GANTT:  No, but I just want

5  everybody to know that later I found out

6  Karen had voted and I did not ask her if

7  she voted for me because that is private.

8  You can vote for whoever you want to, and

9  that's what I want to say.

10      Do you have any questions?

11      MR. MCNAUULTY:  I have no

12  questions.  Do --

13      MR. ALLEN:  No questions.

14      MR. MCNAULTY:  You're excused,

15  Ms. --

16      MS. MEGERIAN:  Appreciate your

17  testimony.

18      MR. MCNAULTY:  Does anybody else

19  wish to give any testimony?

20      MS. BRIDGES:  I have one other

21  thing I would like to say.  I don't know

22  if you --

23      MR. MCNAULTY:  Come back, if you
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1  would.

2      MR. MCNAULTY:  You remember you're

3  -- you're still under oath.

4      MS. BRIDGES:  Yes, sir.

5  (MS. BRIDGES RETAKES THE WITNESS STAND.)

6      MS. BRIDGES:  I would like to say

7  that the election roles are full of dead

8  people and, basically, our election system

9  is as holey as Swiss cheese.  There are so

10  many different holes in it and, just

11  because we're going to be asked to provide

12  ID next year, is not going to make a lot

13  of changes in it.  There are just a lot of

14  problems with the holes.

15      And so I just wanted people to

16  know that, that there are a lot of

17  problems with the -- with what's listed

18  for people who are registered to vote.

19      MR. ALLEN:  Do you think that

20  excuses what you did?

21      MS. BRIDGES:  No.  I'm just saying

22  that that is one problem --

23      MR. ALLEN:  I --
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1      MS. BRIDGES:  -- okay, that my

2  name was on there.  There are a lot of

3  other problems.

4      MR. ALLEN:  I -- I -- I want to

5  stick up for our poll workers and our --

6      MS. BRIDGES:  I'm not talking --

7      MR. ALLEN:  -- election staff --

8      MS. BRIDGES:  I am not --

9      MR. ALLEN:  No, hold -- hold on

10  for just a moment, because we've had

11  people that think they can test the system

12  in the past and we found them out, too.

13  So it's -- it's not --

14      MS. BRIDGES:  Well --

15      MR. ALLEN:  -- it's not a question

16  of --

17      MS. BRIDGES:  Mr. Allen, I do not

18  appreciate your saying that and I am not

19  saying anything about our poll workers.

20  It is inherent in the system that we have

21  here in North Carolina.  I'm just saying,

22  from what I have seen of --

23      MR. ALLEN:  Okay.  Ms. --
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1      MS. BRIDGES:  -- the roles of the

2  polls for the city of Trinity, there are a

3  lot of issues.

4      MR. ALLEN:  And --

5      MS. BRIDGES:  I'm sure you could

6  go anywhere in our state and find the same

7  difficulties.

8      MR. ALLEN:  And you feel that

9  somehow excuses the fact that you cast a

10  ballot --

11      MS. BRIDGES:  No, I --

12      MR. ALLEN:  -- in an election

13  where you were not --

14      MS. BRIDGES:  I -- No.

15      MR. ALLEN:  -- able to vote?

16      MS. BRIDGES:  No.  I'm just

17  saying, in general, there are a lot of

18  problems with -- and -- and when you get

19  down to it, I mean, you can look at

20  anything, I mean, look at the presidential

21  election, when it got down to the wire,

22  there were a lot of things that were --

23  you -- when you start viewing things
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1  microscopically, you start seeing a lot of

2  problems.  That's all I wanted to say.

3      MR. MCNAULTY:  Ms. Bridges, since

4  you've come back to the stand, I -- you

5  said you were confused and I'm confused.

6      How could you, as a person who had

7  been in an elected office and had probably

8  done campaigning and everything and -- how

9  could you even remotely think that you had

10  -- you -- you were eligible to come to

11  Trinity from Morehead City and vote?  Can

12  you answer that question?

13      MS. BRIDGES:  I -- It was not my

14  intention to come here and vote.

15      MR. MCNAULTY:  But you did vote.

16      MS. BRIDGES:  I did and I went in

17  and told the man that I no longer lived

18  here and I was allowed to vote.  I

19  specifically told him that I did not live

20  in Trinity anymore, I had not registered

21  anywhere else, and he said, if your name

22  is on the books, you may vote.

23      MR. MCNAULTY:  Well, we've got
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1  some conflicting testimony there, and I'm

2  not going to -- I'm not going to pursue

3  that further.

4      Would either of you --

5      MS. BRIDGES:  I don't have

6  anything else to say.

7      MR. MCNAULTY:  -- quest -- have

8  any further questions?

9      MS. MEGERIAN:  I don't have any

10  further questions.

11      MR. ALLEN:  No.

12      MR. MCNAULTY:  I don't, either.

13  Thank you.  You're excused, Ms. Bridges.

14  (MS. BRIDGES LEAVES THE WITNESS STAND.)

15      MR. MCNAULTY:  Is there anyone

16  else who would like to give any testimony?

17        (NO RESPONSE.)

18      MR. MCNAULTY:  If not, it's

19  3 o'clock.  Do -- Do we need to -- I will,

20  at this point in time, close the

21  evidentiary part of this hearing.

22      Now, the next step is for this

23  board to come up with an oral decision.
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1  Now, do you, as members of the board, want

2  to continue and try to get that done this

3  afternoon, or do you want to go home and

4  think about what you've heard and come

5  back and do it tomorrow?

6      MR. ALLEN:  I'm --

7      MR. MCNAULTY:  I'm ready to stay

8  here today --

9      MS. MEGERIAN:  I --

10      MR. MCNALUTY:  -- but --

11      MS. MEGERIAN:  I think, if we took

12  a 15-minute recess, we'd be ready to

13  come back.  I think if we take a 15-minute

14  recess, we should be able to come back.

15      MR. MCNAULTY:  Take a 10-minute

16  recess and come back?

17      MS. MEGERIAN:  Yes.

18      MR. MCNAULTY:  Mr. Allen?

19      MR. ALLEN:  That's fine.

20      MR. MCNAULTY:  All right.  We'll

21  take a 10-minute recess 'til 3:10 and

22  resume and the board will attempt to come

23  up with an oral decision.  Thank you.
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1         (RECESS.)

2      MR. MCNAULTY:  My learned cohorts

3  here tell me that they feel that the first

4  thing that we should do is either approve

5  or reject this protest.  So do I hear a

6  motion either way?

7      MR. ALLEN:  Well --

8      Ms. MEGERIAN:  I --

9      MR. ALLEN:  Sorry.  I -- I would

10  like to be heard about that, just briefly,

11  before we --

12      MR. MCNAULTY:  All right.

13      MR. ALLEN:  -- make a motion --

14      MR. MCNAULTY:  Go ahead.

15      MR. ALLEN:  What we've got here is

16  someone that -- this is not a first-time

17  voter, but somebody that's actively

18  involved in the -- the legislative

19  process, a former city council member, a

20  former member of the planning and zoning

21  board, who moves in June of 2015 and, you

22  know, sometimes we have questions about

23  residency, but we don't have that question
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1  here, because she took the -- the stand

2  under oath and said that wasn't a

3  temporary move, I intended to live in

4  Morehead.  She comes back around on

5  election day.  She's working the polls and

6  then she, on a whim, apparently decides

7  that she's going to go into the voting

8  booth and de -- and -- and -- to see if

9  they would allow her to vote.

10      Now, that is simply inexcusable.

11  I mean, that is -- that's a clear

12  violation of the law, and -- and for

13  someone that -- that would be involved in

14  the -- in a public process, in the public

15  sector, to think that that's appropriate,

16  shocks me.

17      And so I move that we uphold the

18  protest as valid.  We approve the protest,

19  and then we -- then we decide what we'll

20  do at that point.

21      MS. MEGERIAN:  I --

22      MR. MCNAULTY:  Ms. Megerian?

23      MS. MEGERIAN:  According to the
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1  protest statute, there are --

2      MR. MCNAULTY:  Please speak into

3  the microphone.  I can't hear you.

4      MS. MEGERIAN:  According to the

5  protest statute, we have to find --

6  there's several different avenues that we

7  can take.  Aside from any potential

8  culpability on the part of the person that

9  caused there to be an irregularity with

10  the election, the question before us today

11  is:  Is there substantial evidence to

12  believe that a violation of election law

13  or other irregularity or misconduct

14  occurred and was it sufficiently serious

15  to cast doubt on the apparent results of

16  the election?

17      What we have here today is

18  testimony that we have one -- at least one

19  person who did cast a vote here who was

20  not eligible to vote.  Given that it is a

21  tie vote, I would move that the board

22  finds that there's substantial evidence

23  that an irregularity occurred and that the
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1  result was sufficiently serious to cast

2  doubt on this election because of the tie

3  vote.  That would be the -- my motion, as

4  part one, of our findings.

5      MR. ALLEN:  I -- I second that

6  motion.

7      MR. MCNAULTY:  Well, since the --

8  Ms. Megerian has made the motion and

9  Mr. Allen has seconded it, I assume your

10  voting aye?

11      MR. ALLEN:  Yes, sir.

12      MR. MCNAULTY:  And I vote aye.  So

13  let the record show that it's a unanimous

14  vote.

15      Now, let me just clarify where

16  Ms. Megerian was getting her information.

17  It's in the election law book, under

18  Statute 163-82-10.

19      MS. MEGERIAN:  That's 182-10.  1

20  -- 182-10.

21      MR. MCNAULTY:  I'm sorry.  182.

22  Not 182-10, 182.10.  And she's reading

23  from Paragraph E on page 348 of this book.

JOHNSON 104



Page 74
1      Now, we have voted that that's our

2  finding on this matter.  Now, if you go to

3  the next page, 349, it says, if the county

4  board makes this conclusion, it may order

5  any of the following, as appropriate:

6      The vote total -- excuse me --

7  that the vote total, as stated in the

8  precinct returned or resert -- results of

9  the canvas, be corrected and new results

10  declared.  Of course we cannot do that.

11      That votes be re -- recounted.

12  We've already recounted the votes.

13      Three, that the protest and the

14  county board's decision be sent to

15  the state board for action by it; and,

16  four, any other action within the

17  authority of the county board.

18      Now, my motion would be that we

19  accept paragraph or statement three,

20  stating that the protest and the county

21  board's decision be sent to the state

22  board for action by it, and that this

23  board recommend that a new election be

JOHNSON 105



Page 75
1  held because the board has no authority to

2  -- it -- to authorize a new election.

3  That has been done by the state board.

4  That would be my motion.

5      MS. MEGERIAN:  I -- I also want to

6  note, at least for the people who've come

7  to watch, at least for their benefit, we

8  can't go in and isolate one vote and say

9  it doesn't count, at least not on election

10  day.  We can't require somebody to tell us

11  who they voted for and adjust the total,

12  so --

13      MR. MCNAULTY:  Let --

14      MS. MEGERIAN:  That would be --

15      MR. MCNAULTY:  Let me re -- Let me

16  clarify what you're saying there.  There's

17  another statute that I wan to read, and

18  let me find -- please, let me find it.

19  163-33, page 38 and 39.  Let me find that

20  one.

21      Ms. Megerian has brought up the

22  possibility of -- of asking -- I don't

23  know that she's from that possibility up.
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1  Let me say this, that there -- there are

2  people that have brought up the

3  possibility of asking Ms. Bridges to tell

4  us how she voted and then changing the

5  total based on that.  Well, that would

6  never happen because we operate under a

7  secret vote, and I don't think this board

8  would certainly be any part of asking her

9  how she voted.  That's her -- That's her

10  privilege.  However, there is a statute,

11  under the powers and duties of county

12  Boards of Election, and that's Statute

13  163-33, with nothing after the 33, and

14  it's -- on Paragraph 3, on page 38 of this

15  election rule book, and it reads:  To

16  investigate irregularities, nonperformance

17  of duties, and violation of laws by

18  election officers and other persons and to

19  report violations to the State Board of

20  Election, in exercising the powers and

21  duties of this subdivision, the board may

22  act only when a majority of its members

23  are present at any meeting at which such
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1  powers or duties are exercised, provided

2  that -- and this is the important part

3  right here -- provided that, in any

4  hearing on an irregularity, no Board of

5  Election shall consider, as evidence, the

6  testimony of a voter who cast a ballot,

7  which ballot that voter was not eligible

8  to cast, as to how that voter voted on

9  that ballot.

10      So the law says that we could not

11  -- even if we had sworn testimony that I

12  voted -- voted a certain way, we can't

13  consider that as evidence.  So I don't see

14  any recourse, short of a new election, to

15  settle this.

16      MR. ALLEN:  And if that's -- if

17  that's a motion that we --

18      MR. MCNAULTY:  I made that motion,

19  I think, to start with.

20      MR. ALLEN:  And I'll -- I'll

21  second that motion.

22      MS. MEGERIAN:  And I'll vote aye.

23      MR. MCNAULTY:  Let the record show
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1  that it's a unanimous vote that we send

2  this matter to the State Board of Election

3  for their consideration with the

4  recommendation that they order a new

5  election.

6      Is there anything further?

7        (NO RESPONSE.)

8      MR. MCNAULTY:  That being the

9  case, we have met our first requirement.

10  Now, I'm going to ask a question of my

11  county attorney over here.  The next step

12  we're supposed to do, within five days of

13  this election, is to issue a written order

14  with legal facts backing up what our

15  findings are.  And I'm going to ask

16  Ms. Scotton, as our duly appointed or

17  elected or hired -- I don't know what's

18  the right word to use -- county or staff

19  attorney, would I be out of order in

20  asking you, and with the help of

21  Ms. Johnson, to go forth and develop a

22  draft of this order for this board?

23      MS. SCOTTON:  No.  No, you would
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1  not be out of order.  It -- I can prepare

2  a draft for your board's consideration.

3      MR. MCNAULTY:  All right.  That

4  being the case, I would ask that you two

5  ladies, who are amply educated to do what

6  I'm asking you to do and know your

7  business, to prepare that order -- a draft

8  of that order, to bring it back to this

9  board to be considered, amended, changed,

10  thrown on the -- in the trash can or

11  whatever and start over, whatever the case

12  may be, and -- and you find that to be in

13  order?

14      MS. SCOTTON:  I do.

15      MR. MCNAULTY:  All right.  Now,

16  the next question is, scheduling.  When do

17  you two ladies think you could have that

18  prepared?

19      MS. SCOTTON:  I could have --

20  Depending upon your schedule, I could have

21  an order by, probably, 2 tomorrow.  I have

22  a meeting --

23      MR. MCNAULTY:  Okay.  So --
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1      MS. SCOTTON:  -- in the morning,

2  but 2 or 3 o'clock tomorrow --

3      MS. SCOTTON:  -- so you can be --

4  you can be real quick with it?

5      MS. SCOTTON:  Um-hmm.

6      MR. MCNAULTY:  You could have it

7  done by tomorrow.  Okay.  Now, I've

8  got two board members that have got

9  full-time jobs.  So I've got to ask them

10  what does their schedule permit.

11      MR. ALLEN:  Give me a moment to

12  check.

13      MR. MCNAULTY:  Yes.  I'm retired.

14  So I can do it anytime that -- that you

15  want.  All the law says is we can't meet

16  or hold this hearing before 8 o'clock in

17  the morning and we can't hold it after 8

18  o'clock in the after -- in the evening. So

19  we got to do it between 8 and 8.

20      MS. MEGERIAN:  I -- Well, I have

21  court scheduled for before noon tomorrow

22  and from noon to 5 on Wednesday.

23      MR. MCNAULTY:  Are you saying
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1  you've got Friday open?

2      MS. MEGERIAN:  No, I've -- I've

3  got court before -- from 9 a.m. to 12

4  tomorrow.

5      MR. MCNAULTY:  Right.

6      MS. MEGERIAN:  And I've got court

7  from 12 to 5 on Wednesday.

8      MR. MCNAULTY:  Okay.

9      MS. MEGERIAN:  So that's the next

10  couple of days.

11      MR. MCNAULTY:  Do you know

12  anything further than that?

13      MS. MEGERIAN:  I have a 2 p.m. on

14  Thursday, but I -- Friday is completely

15  open.

16      MR. MCNAULTY:  Okay.  So Friday

17  looks like an excellent day for you then.

18      MS. JOHNSON:  Or -- Or Wednesday

19  morning would be --

20      MR. ALLEN:  I -- I cannot do

21  Wednesday morning.  For -- What it looks

22  like for my schedule -- I'm -- I'm the

23  only prosecutor in -- in Montgomery
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1  County. Tomorrow afternoon possibly.  I

2  cannot do Wednesday or Thursday, and then

3  Friday would be available.

4      MR. MCNAULTY:  Well, it -- from

5  what I see, these folks can have their --

6  their work done before we can make our

7  schedule work.  So if -- if it meets with

8  everybody's approval, would -- what time

9  Friday would be good?

10      MS. MEGERIAN:  I'm open.

11      MR. ALLEN:  The whole day is fine

12  with me.  Whenever.

13      MR. MCNAULTY:  Would 10 o'clock

14  Friday -- and I don't have a calendar.

15  What is the date of Friday?

16      MS. MEGERIAN:  The 4th.

17      MS. JOHNSON:  December the 4th.

18      MR. MCNAULTY:  The 4th?  All

19  right.  We'll schedule a meeting for 10

20  o'clock Friday the 4th.  And where will we

21  hold it?

22      MS. JOHNSON:  The Board of

23  Election's Office.
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1      MR. MCNAULTY:  In the Board of

2  Election's Office.  Now, again, my learned

3  attorney helper, do we need to record

4  that?

5      MS. SCOTTON:  Do you need to

6  record that meeting?

7      MR. MCNAULTY:  Yes.

8      MS. SCOTTON:  No.  No, it's not

9  part of the hearing.  It's just the

10  issuance of the order.

11      MR. MCNAULTY:  Okay.

12      MS. SCOTTON:  So, no.

13      MR. MCNAULTY:  Now, understand

14  it's an open hearing -- open meeting --

15  not a hearing, an open meeting and anybody

16  that's interested is certainly welcome to

17  attend, and I -- I -- I want to make this

18  statement, all of the Board of Election

19  meetings are open meetings and anybody

20  that wants to attend is welcome to attend

21  them, and I've been on the board for

22  almost three years now and I think we've

23  had two people, other than press people,
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1  to come to the meetings.

2      So Ms. Bridges made some remarks

3  about the system that -- that the voting

4  system was in.  We need input from people.

5  I mean, it -- it -- it's not easy work,

6  and I don't necessarily disagree with some

7  of the things she said, but, nevertheless,

8  I -- I'm -- I'm on a soapbox now and I

9  better -- I better hush.  But you all are

10  welcome at any time to attend any of our

11  meetings.

12      Anything further?

13        (NO RESPONSE.)

14      MR. MCNAULTY:  If not, we're

15  adjourned until 10 o'clock Friday.

16      (THE HEARING CONCLUDED.)

17

18

19

20

21

22

23
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